
 
 

ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 5 December 2016 6.00 pm Committee Room 1, City Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Geoff Ellis (Chair), Liz Maxwell (Vice-Chair), 
Ronald Hills, Jane Loffhagen, Adrianna McNulty, Ric Metcalfe, 
Edmund Strengiel, Naomi Tweddle and Loraine Woolley 
 

Substitute member(s): 
 

Councillors Gill Clayton-Hewson and Ralph Toofany 
 

Independent Person(s): 
 

Chris Elkington and Roger Vine 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Democratic Services and Becky Scott 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 12 September 2016  
 

3 - 6 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  Code of Conduct: Cases Review  
 

7 - 8 

4.  Engagement with Lincoln's Communities  
 

9 - 14 

5.  Guidance for Councillors on Outside Bodies  
 

15 - 20 

6.  Connecting Town Halls Consultation  
 

21 - 32 

7.  Work Programme Update  
 

33 - 38 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally blank.



Ethics and Engagement Committee 12 September 2016 

 
Present: Councillor Geoff Ellis (in the Chair) 

 
Councillors: Gary Hewson (substituted for Jane Loffhagen), 

Ronald Hills, Liz Maxwell, Adrianna McNulty, 
Ric Metcalfe, Edmund Strengiel, Naomi Tweddle and 
Loraine Woolley 
 

Independent Person(s): Roger Vine 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Jane Loffhagen and Chris Elkington 

 
9.  Confirmation of Minutes - 20 June 2016  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 20 June 2016 be confirmed. 
 

10.  Declarations of Interest  
 

No declarations of interest were received. 
 

11.  Code of Conduct: Cases Review  
 

The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

a) presented a report containing information on recent cases relating to other 
local authorities' codes of conduct. 

 
b) summarised the cases within the report, noting the particular areas which 

members might wish to consider. 
 

c) invited members’ questions and comments. 
 
Members: 
 

 discussed the extent to which it was possible to re-educate people with 
outmoded views, noting that a failure to react to offensive comments could be 
seen to condone those comments. 

 considered the case in which councillors had been using a council’s headed 
paper to support licensed drivers accused of criminal offences. 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

12.  Engagement with Lincoln's Communities  
 

The Legal and Democratic Services Manager: 
 

a) outlined a report which had been created to guide a discussion regarding the 
quality and extent of the Council’s current levels of engagement with the 
public. 
 

b) highlighted that the Council was proposing to establish a dedicated group to 
allow the Council to consult with disabled people more easily. 
 

3

Item No. 1



c) drew members’ attention to the current consultation strategy. 
 

d) emphasised the role of elected members in acting as a link between the 
Council and local communities. 
 

e) noted the increasing role which could be played by ‘big data’ in guiding the 
interaction between public services and users. 
 

f) requested that members offer guidance with regard to any areas of the 
Council’s current forms of engagement which could be improved. 
 

g) invited members’ questions and comments. 
 
Members: 
 

 discussed the role of protected characteristics in ensuring the Council 
properly discharged its public sector equality duty. 

 welcomed the report and its intention to improve corporate consultation and 
engagement. 

 requested that future work focus on the Council’s efforts to reach under-
represented groups, noting that current consultative bodies were not always 
perfectly representative of the city. 

 considered the opportunities available to make greater use of online services 
to target under-represented groups. 

 emphasised the utility of effective consultation prior to taking decisions, which 
could often guide the development of sensible policy. 

 noted that the responses made to consultations were not binding and were 
intended to guide policy. It was important to ensure that consultation was with 
the affected parties and drew in a representative portion of the relevant 
population. 

 discussed the extent to which sampling bias could distort the outcome of 
consultations and the need to ensure that difficult-to-reach young people were 
targeted through suitable channels 

 
RESOLVED that officers be requested to provide a report to the next scheduled 
meeting of the Committee addressing the following areas in greater detail: 
 

 Engaging with under-represented groups. 

 The extent to which councillors and the Council acted as effective 
intermediaries for public opinion, and whether existing consultative bodies 
could be made more representative. 

 Using online facilities to improve the quality of engagement. 
 

13.  Member Development Update  
 

The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

a) summarised the member development events held in the past six months. 
 

b) invited members to provide feedback regarding the member development 
programme, including suggestions for future member training topics and 
events. 

 
c) invited members’ questions and comments. 

 
4



Members: 
 

 welcomed the training options which had been provided by the Council, 
including the convenient timing of events and the opportunities for new 
councillors to gain an understanding of ongoing projects. 

 discussed the challenges of ensuring that councillors were trained to a 
suitable standard to take part in licensing hearings. 

 noted the significant expense of training and travelling to external events 

 requested that officers seek to ensure that anticipated finish times for training 
events were provided in advance to members. 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

14.  Work Programme Update  
 

The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

a) presented the current Ethics and Engagement Committee work programme 
for consideration by members. 
 

b) invited members' questions and comments.  
 
RESOLVED that the work programme be approved. 
 

5



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  5 DECEMBER 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
CODE OF CONDUCT: CASES REVIEW 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER, CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide information on recent cases relating to other local authorities’ codes of 

conduct and consider their potential relevance to the Council. 
 

2. National Cases Relating to Councillor Conduct 
 

2.1 Since the removal of the Standards for England Board as part of the changes 
brought through the Localism Act 2011, the Council no longer receives a summary 
of cases reported from across the country. As a result, the cases chosen for 
consideration are drawn primarily from local government networks and media 
reports, and are summarised below.  
 

2.2 Any reports highlighted are gathered solely from information made available by the 
relevant local authorities. As cases are often considered to contain exempt 
information, there are potentially elements of the case which may not be publicly 
available. As such, members should be aware that any cases below are provided 
for the purpose of discussion and may not give the full picture in every regard. 
 

2.3 Coventry City Council 
A councillor was found to have breached the member code of conduct by failing to 
treat people with respect, after racially abusing a shopkeeper and threatened to 
have a shop closed down. It was also alleged that the councillor had failed to 
identify himself as a councillor. However, it was found that the councillor’s 
subsequent referral of a complaint regarding the shop to Trading Standards was not 
inappropriate in itself. 
 

2.4 Malvern Hills District Council 
A councillor was found not to have breached the member code of conduct after 
accusing the council’s mayor of dishonesty and calling for his resignation in a 
written statement circulated to officers and the press. The councillor was found not 
to have breached the code of conduct by bringing the council into disrepute.  
 

2.5 City of Wolverhampton Council 
An investigation was carried out into whether a councillor had breached the member 
code of conduct following the receipt of an anonymous letter to the council alleging 
misconduct by a councillor. The initial allegation had related to whether the 
councillor lived at a different address from the one he had declared. No evidence 
was found to substantiate that allegation, although it was found that the councillor 
had failed to make relevant declarations in relation to his role as a premises licence 
holder. However, it was found that there was no breach of the member code of 
conduct. 

7

Item No. 3



 
3. Potential Learning Points  

 
3.1 
 

Having regard to these complaints which have been investigated by other local 
authorities, members should consider whether any appropriate actions can be 
identified to ensure that the likelihood of any future breaches of the Member Code of 
Conduct by members representing the City of Lincoln Council is limited. 
 

3.2 
 

The Ethics and Engagement Committee may wish to consider the following actions 
if any learning points are identified: 

 Issuing guidance to members and any other relevant parties on a general 
topic which presents a cause for concern with a view to potential future 
breaches of the Member Code of Conduct. 

 Requesting specific training for all members or members whose individual 
status would be relevant to the particular training. 

 Proposing amendments to the Member Code of Conduct and the procedure 
for considering complaints, if improvements can be identified. 

 Any other actions falling within the remit of the Committee which might aid 
the improvement of councillors’ conduct. 

 
3.3 
 

If members are aware of further cases of broad interest from other local authorities 
in relation to ethical behaviour by councillors, details can be submitted via 
Democratic Services or raised at the meeting of the Committee for potential 
inclusion in a future report. 
 

4. Strategic Priorities  
 

4.1 The development of a fit-for-purpose council relies upon the proper conduct of 
officers and members. By considering the lessons learned from other local 
authorities the Council is better positioned to take preventative action to resolve any 
potential issues before they arise. 
 

5. Organisational Impacts  
 

5.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

5.2 Legal Implications  
The Ethics and Engagement Committee’s role includes the promotion and 
maintenance of high standards of conduct by councillors and co-opted members; 
this report forms a part of the work of the Committee in proactively addressing any 
matter that could detract from the reputation and behaviour of the Council or its 
councillors. 
 

6. Recommendation  
 

6.1 
 

That the Ethics and Engagement Committee note the contents of the report and 
recommend any suitable action arising from it. 

 

8



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  5 DECEMBER 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
ENGAGEMENT WITH LINCOLN’S COMMUNITIES 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER, CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 At the last meeting of the Committee, members considered a report regarding the 

overall manner in which the Council engages with the public. 
 

1.2 Having considered the provided report, members resolved to investigate the 
following three areas in further detail: 
 

 Engaging with under-represented groups. 

 The extent to which councillors and the Council acted as effective 
intermediaries for public opinion, and whether existing consultative bodies 
could be made more representative. 

 Using online facilities to improve the quality of engagement. 
 

1.3 This report is therefore provided in order to allow members to give further 
consideration to these topics. 
 

2. Engaging with under-represented groups. 
 

2.1 Lincoln, in common with many areas of the UK, has become progressively more 
diverse in the make-up of its population in recent decades. This includes an 
increase in the variety of nationalities, ethnic groups, and religions, as well as 
those self-identifying as being gay, bisexual, or transgender.  
 

2.2 With the apparently increasing diversity of Lincoln’s population and greater 
opportunities for individuals to form parts of complex multi-faceted communities, 
the Council faces new challenges in effectively reaching certain groups, as well as 
generating new opportunities. 
 

2.3 In recent years, the Committee has considered a number of reports in relation to 
engaging with citizens from other European Union countries and with young 
people. This work has particularly focused on improving engagement with local 
democracy. 
 

2.4 However, members have expressed concerns that the Council is potentially failing 
to reach significant numbers of residents, who are not accessible through the 
channels usually used by the Council for consultations and other similar exercises. 
In order to address this issue it is first necessary to establish which groups are in 
fact under-represented. To this end, the work undertaken as part of the 
Consultation and Engagement Strategy review will assist the Council in tackling 
perceived gaps in representation, as seen through work to make the citizens panel 
more representative of Lincoln’s population. 

9

Item No. 4



 
2.5 Consultation and Engagement Strategy review 

As referenced in the last report to the Committee, the Council already has in place 
a Consultation and Engagement Strategy. Officers have recently undertaken the 
following review of the strategy. 
 

2.6 The Council has a statutory duty to provide cost effective and efficient services, to 
consult with our communities on service delivery, and in particular to meet our 
public equality duty. The Council’s Strategic Plan identifies its key priorities, and 
sets out how the priorities will be delivered. In order to achieve service and 
development aims, stakeholders must have the opportunity to provide feedback on 
current service provision and have a say in the planning and delivery of future 
developments. 
 
The Council’s 3-year Consultation and Engagement Strategy has been developed 
to ensure that there are processes in place to ensure this.  
 
Consultation in Lincoln is designed around the following principles:  
 

 Bespoke – one size does not fit all, it should meet the specific need 

 Timely – consultation should be undertaken early on in decision making 

 Appropriate – consultation should be proportionate, relevant and accessible  

 Inclusive – all affected groups should have the right to express their views  

 Effective – outcomes should inform decision-making and service delivery 
 
The Council uses a wide variety of consultation mechanisms to ensure that all 
citizens and stakeholders in Lincoln can influence the development of policies and 
inform the way in which services are delivered. Some of the key consultation 
methods regularly used by Council are:  
 

 Surveys: numerous surveys are conducted during each year depending on 
service requirements. From time to time comprehensive large-scale surveys 
are conducted covering all sectors. 

 

 Citizens’ Panel: currently comprising over 700 residents, the panel is 
consulted on a range of strategic and service issues via postal and 
electronic surveys around three times per year, and is good for providing 
trended data. 

 

 Focus Groups: provide an opportunity to talk to citizens, businesses and the 
third sector face to face; answering questions as well as providing more 
detail on the issue under discussion. 

 

 Council website: the Community Voice section on the website has been 
refreshed to allow direct access to online surveys, and results.  

 

 Social Media: this route may attract a different audience to standard paper 
surveys, but used together they are more likely to cover a broader base. 

 
2.7 As part of the formal strategy there is an action plan covering the development of 

consultation over the next three years. Key actions and updates from this include: 

10



 

 Formal roll out of the new strategy – the new strategy is to be found on City 
People and also on the Council’s website. 
 

 Complete guidance for staff. This is about 90% completed and usable in its 
current state, but as yet has not been formally rolled out. 

 

 Undertake a refresh of the Citizens panel – in 2016 we utilised the services 
of an external agency to recruit around 250 new panel members who were 
specifically targeted to maintain the proportionality of the panel. In addition 
the Policy team undertook an exercise to target students and successfully 
obtained 55 new registrations from the student intake at Fresher’s fair. 

 

 Undertake a minimum of three Citizens Panel surveys – the second survey 
for 2016/17 is currently underway, this is the standard November 
satisfaction survey. The third survey is not always conducted, this would be 
in January/February of 2017. 
 

 Undertake consultation for any major service or policy change – in 
September 2016 we undertook a major consultation on the developing 
Strategic Plan (now called the 2020 Vision) This included a large citizens 
focus group (40 people), extensive direct contact to identified key contacts, 
a member focus group, a tenants panel presentation, presence at the 
Business Growth Conference and a 2 page questionnaire/advert in the 
centre pages of Your Lincoln to every home in Lincoln, with social media to 
promote completion. 
 

 We also conducted an extensive survey to all affected households when 
determining the way forward for Residents Parking Permits. 
 

 Refresh the Community Voice web site for external customers – this has 
been more simply named as ‘Consultations and Questionnaires’ so that 
people searching the web can find it more easily. Citizens Panel Surveys 
are now accessible through this site as well as results from past surveys. 
 

 Publish a consultation forward calendar each year – we have not 
progressed this sufficiently yet, but intend to take this forward in the new-
year. It involves work across many services. 
 

 Provide an annual progress report to Performance Scrutiny Committee – it 
has been agreed with the Chair of the Performance Scrutiny Committee 
that this will be combined in this report to the Ethics and Engagement 
Committee. 

 
3. Using Online Facilities 

 
3.1 
 

The Council has made use of the internet as a form of consultation for a number of 
years. This has mirrored the increasing prevalence of internet usage in wider 
society, with more people using the internet regularly and for a wider variety of 
services than before. 
 

11



3.2 
 

The Council already uses online services such as Twitter and Facebook to engage 
with the public and other partners, as well as having an actively-updated website. 
This shift towards online engagement can be to the exclusion of residents who are 
unable to access the internet. However, given the widespread use of the internet, 
particularly among younger people, to ignore this means of engagement would 
appear to be self-defeating. It is also evident that the internet provides a cost-
effective and adaptable platform for a variety of consultations. 
 

3.3 As referenced in the last report to the Committee, a number of commercial 
organisations offer the opportunity for customers to commission online surveys 
targeted to particular demographic groups, including targeting respondents based 
upon their location.  
 

3.4 One of the largest such service in the UK is provided by the online polling 
company, Yougov. Yougov operates by having a large number of potential polling 
clients who are paid to participate in polls. The polling clients give information 
about themselves which allows Yougov to target polls based on the request made 
by the client. This is useful if seeking to conduct a representative polling exercise 
or to poll people with certain kinds of backgrounds. 
 

3.5 
 

However, Yougov and other similar operations are commercial organisations 
which charge for their services. For the Council to make use of this kind of 
bespoke polling would be likely to cost several thousand pounds as a result of 
Lincoln’s relatively limited population size. In addition to the prohibitive cost there 
is also a risk that with a relatively low sample size, the results of consultation 
exercises would be liable to the same kind of distortive sample bias discussed by 
members at the previous meeting.  
 

3.6 Regardless of whether the Council conducts online or traditional consultation 
exercises, it is likely to prove extremely challenging to ensure responses to 
consultations are representative of Lincoln’s population. This is an almost 
inevitable consequence of the tendency for certain groups of people to be more 
likely to take part in consultations than others. However, as referenced above, 
attempts to make the citizens panel more representative are being actively 
pursued. 
 

3.7 Other consultative bodies, such as the Commons Advisory Panel and the Historic 
Environment Advisory Panel are primarily orientated towards providing a venue for 
special interest representatives to liaise with Council members and officers. For 
example, the Commons Advisory Panel specifies the bodies which are 
represented on the panel, and does not give wide scope for general public 
involvement which might make the Panel more representative.  
 

3.8 However, bodies such as the Lincoln Tenants Panel, which comprises tenant 
representatives, adopt a different approach by allowing tenants to elect 
representatives to the Panel. Members therefore may wish to consider whether 
this would be practical or desirable in other instances. It should be noted, however, 
that the Council, in common with others, has experienced some difficulties in 
attracting high volumes of applications from suitable candidates for similar 
positions in recent years. 
 
 

12



 
4. Alternative methods for gauging public opinion 

 
4.1 As explored above, members noted concerns at the last meeting of the Committee 

regarding the extent to which consultation responses currently being received by 
the Council could be distorted by either sampling bias or misinterpretation. 
 

4.2 Many of the consultations held by the Council are focused upon relatively limited 
groups of people, while others may be more open to participation from the wider 
community. The nature of the consultation clearly has an effect on the extent to 
which a representative response is either possible or desirable. For more limited 
consultations, the lower number of participants is likely to mean that the 
consultees are a more homogenous group and that the lower total number of 
responses makes the gathered data less representative.  
 

4.3 A significant number of councillors carry out ward surgeries which allow local 
residents to raise concerns with their elected representatives. Councillors also 
have numerous other ways to keep in contact with the residents of the wards, 
including political canvassing, attendance at local meetings, and day-to-day 
contact with residents. 
 

4.4 However, the experiences of different councillors in gauging public opinion will 
clearly be affected by a wide variety of factors, including the nature of the wards 
they represent and the councillors themselves. Given their considerable 
involvement with the public, many members will be used to weighing a variety of 
factors in gauging public opinion. This is, though, a skill which is likely to have 
been developed in a manner personal to each councillor. The Committee may 
therefore wish to consider whether members require additional support in either 
understanding the demographics of their particular wards and the city as a whole, 
and potentially in data interpretation. 
 

5. Organisational Impacts  
 

5.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

5.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

6. Recommendation  
 

6.1 
 

That members note the report and determine whether any aspect of the Council’s 
current engagement with the public should be considered in any further detail. 

 

13



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  5 DECEMBER 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
GUIDANCE FOR COUNCILLORS ON OUTSIDE BODIES 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER, CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 The Council appoints a number of representatives each year to outside bodies. This 

report proposes that the guidance attached as Appendix A be considered for 
circulation with regard to the duties of those representatives. 
 

2. The Role of Councillors on Outside Bodies 
 

2.1 The Council has a large number of relationships with other organisations. Each year 
the Council appoints representatives to a significant number of these bodies. These 
relationships may allow the Council to make appointments either by right or as a 
result of an informal agreement with or an invite from the other organisation. 
 

2.2 The type of organisation varies considerably and includes local drainage boards, 
charities, and other bodies promoting the public good. As a result of the varied 
nature of the organisations, the Council’s representatives’ roles may vary 
considerably.  
 

2.3 Equally, it is to be stressed that members will often assume considerable 
responsibilities when they agree to become a representative of the Council. In 
addition by taking responsibility for both their own and the Council’s reputation, 
representatives on outside bodies may also be taking on serious legal 
responsibilities.  
 

2.4 For example, the Council appoints a number of trustees to outside bodies. The role 
of a trustee is potentially demanding and may entail the representative in taking 
difficult decisions on behalf of the relevant trust. In addition, the trustee can have 
particular legal responsibility to account to the trust for any harm which their 
decisions have caused. This responsibility can clearly have potentially serious 
financial consequences for the trustee.  
 

2.5 In order to ensure that the Council’s representatives are fully aware of the potential 
challenges of taking on roles with outside bodies, officers have prepared outline 
guidance on the role of external representatives for members’ consideration. It is 
hoped that this will ensure members continue to approach these roles in an 
informed and responsible manner. 
 

3. The Guidance Document 
 

3.1 
 

The attached guidance document (Appendix A) provides an introduction to some of 
the roles external representatives might commonly be called upon to undertake. In 
particular, there is a focus placed upon highlighting the ways in which the external 

15

Item No. 5



representatives can seek to ensure they will fulfil their legal duties, either in their 
role as an external representative or as a councillor. 
 

3.2 
 

The guidance is not intended to be exhaustive, but to act as a broad and accessible 
guide for representatives in approaching their roles on external bodies. It is intended 
to encourage members to consider the principal points which may arise through any 
appointments and to seek further guidance for any specific concerns.  
 

3.3 It is clear that, particularly in relation to the role of trustees or company directors, it 
would be possible to compile considerably more detailed guidance to cover a 
greater number of eventualities and risks. However, incorporating guidance of that 
detail would be to duplicate guidance already available to members from other 
sources and potentially to diminish the likelihood of external representatives 
referring to the guidance. 
 

3.4 A number of the Council’s appointed representatives are not councillors. It is 
therefore recommended that any guidance also be circulated to lay nominees for 
their information. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That members consider the proposed guidance and offer any feedback regarding 
potential improvements or clarification. 
 

5.2 That members recommend the circulation of the guidance for the attention of 
councillors and any non-councillors nominated to outside bodies. 

 

16



 
Representing the Council on 

Outside Bodies 
 

 

The City of Lincoln Council appoints representatives to a variety of external 

bodies. These representatives are often councillors but some are members 
of the public who the Council trusts to undertake the relevant duty. This 

guide has been produced to help the Council’s representatives to 
understand their responsibilities when undertaking one of these roles. 

 

Summary 

People can be appointed to outside bodies in order to fulfil a number of 

different kinds of duties. Some organisations might wish to consult with a 
representative from the Council and others might want the representative 

to be actively involved in decision making. The type of organisation may 
also vary and include private companies, charities, trusts, and community 

groups.   
 

Acting as an Ordinary Representative on an Outside Body 

Many of the appointments made by the Council to outside bodies are made 

to bodies which are not formally constituted as trusts or companies. The 

role of the external representative therefore will often vary between 
different organisations. In general, though, while you may be able to take 

into account the interests of the Council and the community when acting 
on the outside body, it is important to consider the interests of that outside 

body first and offer your assistance to ensure its interests are protected. 
You must also take particular care that the body operates in a lawful way.  

  

Acting as a Trustee 

Becoming a trustee is a considerable responsibility which should be taken 
extremely seriously. By acting as a trustee you become legally responsible 

for taking decisions on behalf of the relevant trust. A trust holds assets and 

takes decisions intended to achieve the set aims of the trust.  
 

This responsibility can potentially carry personal liability for the trustee. 
This means, for example, that if you unreasonably take a decision which is 

not in the best interests of the trust then you may be required to make a 
payment to the trust to cover the loss which you have caused. 

 
For this reason, you should carefully consider any decisions you take. In 

particular, if any decisions require specialist knowledge, including making 

17



investments or legal matters, you should seek professional advice in order 

to protect the trust and yourself. 
 

When you become a trustee you should try to become familiar with the way 
the trust has been set up. For example, 

you should find out what the purpose of 
the trust is and make enquiries about any 

assets held by the trust. 
 

One of the most important factors to 
remember when acting as a trustee is 

that you must take all decisions in the 
best interests of the trust. You should not 

benefit from any decisions which you 
take.  

 

Acting as the Director of a Company 

The Council does not currently appoint any members to act as directors of 

companies. However, it should be noted that acting as the director of a 
company carries specific responsibilities which can diverge from those owed 

by trustees or other kinds of representatives on an outside body. 
 

As with being a trustee, acting as the director of a company can mean that 
you are personally liable for the actions you take and you should seek 

specialist guidance before undertaking any such role. 
 

Codes of Conduct 

When acting as an appointed representative of the Council, the Member 
Code of Conduct will still apply to the activities you undertake. However, it 

is possible that the outside body will have its own code of conduct which 
you are expected to adhere to. While in many respects the codes of conduct 

of most outside bodies will align with the Member Code of Conduct, it is 
possible that there may be some conflicts between them. If so, you may 

wish to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in resolving how you act.  
 

However, in the event that you are unable to consult the Monitoring Officer 
you should consider whether you are acting in your role as a councillor or 

a representative on an outside body and follow the relevant code of conduct 

accordingly. 
 

Understanding the Purpose of the Body 

When you are appointed to an outside body, you will be given the contact 

details for a Council officer who can assist you in understanding what the 
outside body does. The officer may be able to offer some advice regarding 

how the body has interacted with the Council in the past and give you useful 

Example 
You are a trustee for a local 

charity. The charity has 
benefitted from a donor’s 

legacy and needs to invest 
the money. You should seek 

professional advice before 
determining how this money 
should be invested. 

18



background details regarding the organisation’s recent history. Democratic 

Services may also have constitutions or terms of reference for the outside 
body which they can provide to help you to understand the body’s purpose. 

 
Democratic Services will also help you to make contact with the outside 

body by providing you with the relevant contact details. If you have any 
difficulties making contact with the outside body or learning about meeting 

dates, please contact Democratic Services for further assistance. 
 

Most outside bodies will also seek to help you to understand the way in 
which they operate. When you become a representative on an outside body 

your contact details will be provided to the outside body so that they are 
able to let you know more about your responsibilities. 

 

Personal and Pecuniary Interests 

The Member Code of Conduct requires members to register the details of 

any body of which they are a member or in a position of general control or 
management, and to which they are appointed or nominated by the 

Council. 
 

In addition to including this information 
on the register of interests, members 

should be aware that it will be necessary 
to declare an interest in relevant business 

being discussed within Council and 
committee meetings.  

 

Where an item relates to or affects a body 
to which a member has been appointed 

by Council they must always declare a 
personal interest to the meeting. If that 

item might reasonably be regarded as 
affecting the financial position of that 

body or relates to determining an 
application of some kind, the member is 

also likely to have to declare a prejudicial 
interest and leave the room during the 

consideration of that item. 
 

Confidentiality and Information Sharing 

If you receive information as part of your duties with an outside body you 
should respect the duty of confidentiality that will apply to that information 

and not share it without the permission of the body. Equally, any 
information you receive on a confidential basis in your role at the Council 

should not be shared with the outside body. 
 

Example 
Councillor Rubble is 

appointed by the Council to 
the board of a local museum. 

If the councillor is at a 
committee meeting where 

anything relating to the 
museum is discussed, she 

must declare a personal 
interest. If the discussion 

might affect the finances of 
the museum (e.g. allocating 

a budget or grant) or, for 

example, a planning or 
licensing application in which 

the museum has an interest, 
she will have a personal and 

pecuniary interest and must 
leave the room.  

19



However, it may be appropriate at times to act as a link between the outside 

body and the Council. This could involve keeping relevant officers and 
members informed about the activities and plans of the outside body, as 

well as using your knowledge of the Council and the local area to assist the 
outside body. 

 
While acting on an outside body, you will also need to ensure that you act 

in accordance with the same data protection principles you would apply 
when acting as a councillor. This includes handling any personal information 

with care and making sure that it is not shared without having relevant 
permission. If in doubt regarding the protection of data please seek advice 

from the Legal & Democratic Services Manager. 
 

Gifts and Hospitality 

Members should also remember that if they receive any gifts 
or hospitality over the value of £50 in their role as a 

member from someone other than the Council, they must 
inform the monitoring officer. If you are unsure whether 

you have received gifts or hospitality in your capacity as 
a representative on an outside body or as an elected 

member please contact the Monitoring Officer for guidance. 
 

Expenses 

The Council does not reimburse members for any costs in relation to their 
role on an outside body. 

 

Insurance  

The Council has insurance in place to cover the activities of officers and 
councillors when acting on external bodies in their capacity as a councillor 

or an officer. This insurance extends to cover a breach of statutory duty by 
way of negligence, error or omission. However, this cover does not extend 

to any body on which a councillor or an officer are acting in an independent 

capacity. 
 

Carolyn Wheater, Monitoring Officer 
25 November 2016 

£50 
Gifts and 

Hospitality 
Threshold 

20



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  5 DECEMBER 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
CONNECTING TOWN HALLS CONSULTATION 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER, CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To seek members’ views regarding the Connecting Town Halls consultation. 

 
2. Connecting Town Halls 

 
2.1 The Department for Communities and Local Government launched the attached 

consultation document (Appendix A) on 9 November 2016. 
 

2.2 At present, local government committee meetings in England require all members to 
be physically present at the meeting in order to take part. With an increasing 
number of councils taking part in shared services with other councils, members and 
the public are faced with travelling increased distances to attend meetings.  
 

2.3 In order to address this problem, the government is consulting upon introducing 
changes to allow members to participate in meetings using online video facilities 
based at local council offices. The proposal affects only joint committee and 
combined authority meetings and would still require members to attend a public 
meeting venue to take part in the committee meeting. 
 

2.4 The consultation will end on 11 January 2017. The Portfolio Holder for Corporate 
Management and Customer Services has delegated authority to respond to 
consultations relating to his portfolio. The Committee is therefore recommended to 
highlight any proposed response for his consideration. 
 

3. Possible Impact for the City of Lincoln Council 
 

3.1 
 

The City of Lincoln Council currently takes part in a number of formal joint 
committees including the Shared Revenues and Benefits Joint Committee, the 
Central Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee, and the Lincolnshire Police 
and Crime Panel. The formation of a combined authority for Lincolnshire has also 
been under consideration in recent months. 
 

3.2 
 

Each of these joint committees involves members and officers from the City of 
Lincoln Council regularly travelling to other parts of Lincolnshire for meetings. This 
is usually more time-consuming than taking part in meetings at City Hall, particularly 
given the extensive geographical size of the Council’s neighbouring authorities. The 
Council does not incur significant costs for car mileage expenses incurred by 
councillors at present, although there is potential for this to vary from year-to-year. 
 

3.3 The City of Lincoln Council already has access to video conferencing facilities in 

21

Item No. 6



Committee Room 4 which link with other local authorities, including partners on joint 
committees. While these facilities are not currently located in public meeting rooms, 
they are sufficiently accessible in view of the low numbers of members of the public 
likely to attend these types of meeting. 
 

3.4 It should be noted that the introduction of an option to take part in meetings by video 
conferencing would not be compulsory and it is not anticipated that any restrictions 
would be placed on members’ current rights to reclaim the cost of travel to meeting 
venues outside the city.  
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That members consider the consultation and offer any views for the consideration of 
the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Management and Customer Services in 
formulating a response. 
 

 

22



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Connecting Town Halls 

 

Consultation on allowing joint committees and combined 
authorities to hold meetings by video conference 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

November 2016 
Department for Communities and Local Government 

23



 

 
 

 
 
© Crown copyright, 2016 

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown. 

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, 
under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this 
licence,http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/ or write to the 
Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email: 
psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk. 

This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov.uk/dclg 

If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, complete the form at 
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/ or write to us at: 

Department for Communities and Local Government 
Fry Building 
2 Marsham Street 
London  
SW1P 4DF 
Telephone: 030 3444 0000  

For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter: https://twitter.com/CommunitiesUK  

November 2016 

ISBN: 978-1-4098-4933-9

24

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/
mailto:psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/dclg
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/
https://twitter.com/CommunitiesUK


 

3 
 

Contents 

1. Scope of the consultation 4 

2. Introduction 6 

3. Proposals on allowing joint committees and combined authorities to hold 
meetings by video conference 7 

About this consultation 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



 

4 
 

 
1. Scope of the consultation 

 
A consultation paper issued by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government on behalf of the Secretary of State 
 

Topic of this 
consultation: 
 

This consultation paper sets out the Government’s proposals for 
giving local authorities operating joint committees, and combined 
authorities, the ability to hold meetings by video conference. 
 

Scope of this 
consultation: 
 

The Department for Communities and Local Government is 
consulting on proposals to give local authorities operating joint 
committees, and combined authorities, but not councils as a 
whole, the ability to hold formal meetings using video conferencing 
facilities. 
 
Making any change to the rules on how these meetings are held in 
England will require changes to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Geographical 
scope: 
 

The proposals in this consultation paper apply to local authorities 
operating joint committees, and combined authorities, in England 
only. 
 

Impact 
Assessment: 
 

No impact assessment has been produced for this consultation.  
The proposals would give local authorities and combined 
authorities the ability to hold these meetings by video conference 
should they so wish, rather than placing any requirement upon 
them to do so. 
 

 

Basic Information 
 

To: 
 

This consultation is open to everyone.  We particularly seek the 
views of individual members of the public, of local authorities that 
operate joint committees, of combined authorities, of those bodies 
that represent the interests of local authorities, and of the local 
media who report on these types of specific meeting. 
 

Body responsible 
for the 
consultation: 

The Conduct and Council Constitutions Team in the Department 
for Communities and Local Government is responsible for 
conducting the consultation. 
 

Duration: 
 

The consultation will begin on 9 November 2016.  The consultation 
will run for 9 weeks and will close on 11 January 2017.  All 
responses should be received by no later than 11 January 2017. 
 

26



 

5 
 

Enquiries: 
 

During the consultation, if you have any enquiries, please contact: 
 
Stuart Young 
email: stuart.young@communities.gsi.gov.uk 
TEL: 0303 44 42005 
 
How to respond: 
Please respond by email to:  
 
videoconferencingconsultation@communities.gsi.gov.uk  
 
Alternatively, please send postal responses to: 
 
Stuart Young 
Department for Communities and Local Government  
2nd Floor, NE, Fry Building  
2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 
 
Responses should be received by close on 11 January 2017. 
 

How to respond: 
 

You can respond by email or by post. 
 
When responding, please make it clear which questions you are 
responding to. 
 
When you reply it would be very useful if you could confirm 
whether you are replying as an individual or submitting an official 
response on behalf of an organisation and include: 
- your name 
- your position (if applicable) 
- the name and address of your organisation (if applicable) 
- an address, and 
- an e mail address (if you have one) 

 
 
 
 
 

27

mailto:stuart.young@communities.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:videoconferencingconsultation@communities.gsi.gov.uk


 

6 
 

 

2. Introduction 

 
1. The Department for Communities and Local Government is consulting on proposals 
to give local authorities operating joint committees, and combined authorities, but not 
councils as a whole, the ability to hold formal meetings using video conferencing facilities. 
 

The Rules about Council Meetings 

2. Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 sets out the rules for holding 
council meetings.  The legislation is clear that all those taking part in a council meeting 
should be physically present in the place where the meeting is taking place.  The 
Government considers that these rules still remain appropriate for council meetings that do 
not involve the meetings of a joint committee, or a combined authority.  However, given the 
quality of video conferencing facilities available today it is right that local authorities 
operating joint committees, and combined authorities, be given the ability to hold meetings 
on multiple sites. 
 
3. Making any change to the rules on how council meetings are held in England will 
require changes to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Joint Committees and Combined Authorities 

4. Joint committees and combined authorities present particular geographical 
challenges when holding meetings. 
 
5. Joint committees are committees formed by two or more local authorities to 
discharge certain functions of those local authorities jointly.  They allow strategic decisions 
to be taken over a greater area than a single local authority.  Each constituent local 
authority is represented on the joint committee by a councillor from that constituent local 
authority. 
 
6. A combined authority is a legal structure that can be established by the Secretary of 
State at the request of two or more county councils or district councils.  Combined 
authorities can discharge statutory functions, such as transport and economic 
development functions, for the area of the combined authority, which comprises the area 
of the constituent local authorities of the combined authority.  Combined authority 
members can be members of constituent councils as well as representatives from other 
organisations. 
 
7. The Government’s proposals to give local authorities operating joint committees, 
and combined authorities, the ability to hold meetings by video conference maintain the 
town hall transparency that the Government considers essential to help ensure that the 
public can hold their authority to account. 
 

28



 

7 
 

 

3. Proposals on allowing joint committees 
and combined authorities to hold meetings 
by video conference 

Video Conferencing 

8. The Government considers that, with appropriate safeguards to maintain town hall 
transparency, there could be benefits to giving local authorities operating joint committees, 
and combined authorities, the ability to hold formal meetings by video conference in 
certain circumstances. 
 
9. For the purposes of these proposals, a meeting is any meeting of a joint committee, 
or any meeting of a combined authority, including a meeting where a vote might be called 
to decide a matter. 
 
10. The Government understands that where a joint committee has been established or 
where a combined authority exists, the area covered by the joint committee or the 
combined authority can be considerable.  As a result, meeting venues for joint committees 
or combined authorities may be an inconvenient distance away from the homes of some 
councillors taking part in the meeting and the public who wish to attend the meeting. Such 
councillors were not directly elected to combined authorities or joint committees, and 
therefore, travelling such a geographic distance was not a reasonable expectation when 
standing for election as a councillor. 
 
11. The use of video conferencing to hold meetings could remove those barriers of time 
and distance that might arise where a meeting of a joint committee or combined authority 
is held at a location far from the home of a councillor or member of the public.  Not only 
could this lead to a potential saving in travel expenses, but it could help ensure that people 
are not discouraged from participating in these types of pan-local authority meeting, and 
would encourage more joint-working in local government. 
 
12. The Government is committed to continuing to ensure that authorities are provided 
with the tools and freedoms they need to make the best use of taxpayers’ money and 
public resources.  These proposals will enable local authorities operating joint committees, 
and combined authorities, to use video conferencing facilities to hold their meetings, 
making it easier for those who are participating in those meetings to attend the meetings, 
and making it easier for the public who wish to attend or observe meetings to do so. 
 
13. Video conferencing enables people at different sites to both see and hear one 
another.  Video conferencing of meetings must mean that not only can the participants of 
the meeting see and hear one another, but members of the public can see and hear all the 
participants, just as if the meeting were taking place in a single meeting room with a public 
gallery. 
 

29



 

8 
 

14. To ensure that participants and the public can take part in and observe a meeting 
happening in more than one location, we propose that the access to video conferencing 
facilities to hold council meetings be available at local authority or combined authority sites 
that are suitable for holding a meeting with public access. 
 
15. This would include, for instance, a local town hall of a constituent council of a 
combined authority or of a local authority operating a joint committee with other local 
authorities.  A constituent council or local authority member would not be able to 
participate in a meeting held by video conference from their home, or from a private 
premises.  
 
16. This will ensure that a constituent council or local authority member, or a member of 
the public attending a meeting at any site where a local authority member is attending the 
meeting, would also be able to see and hear simultaneously the activities of the local 
authority members attending the meeting at the other sites in use. 
 
17. If the meeting is also being streamed on the internet then it may, of course, be 
observed by anyone, anywhere, with an internet connection and the facility to stream 
video. 
 

Preserving Town Hall Transparency 

18. Transparency is the foundation of local accountability, the key that gives people the 
tools they need to hold their authorities to account.  Since 2010, town hall transparency 
has improved greatly, including changes to the rules about attending council meetings to 
allow the public to tweet, blog and film the proceedings of council meetings. 
 
19. The Government’s proposals preserve town hall transparency and, further, provide 
the opportunity for enhanced scrutiny of decision making by enabling local authorities to 
take advantage of, for instance, live streaming meetings held by video conference. 
 
20. The proposals will not change the rules on local authorities or combined authorities 
publicising meetings, other than that the meeting will now take place on two or more sites. 
There will also still be limited defined circumstances where the national rules require or 
allow the meeting to be closed to the public, meaning that only those members 
participating in the meeting will have access to the video conferencing facilities. 
 
21. Whilst the Government is aware that “remote attendance” was floated by then 
(Labour) Government in 2008, this Government does not support councillors being able to 
take part in their own council’s meetings from their own home, or from some other private 
premises; the Government believes that such changes would undermine visible 
democracy scrutiny and public debate.  Other than for joint committees and combined 
authorities which cover more than one local authority area, all council meetings should 
continue to take place, in person, in the public premises designated for that council 
meeting. 
 

30



 

9 
 

Questions 

Q1: Do you agree that local authorities operating joint committees should have 
the ability to hold meetings by video conference? 
 
Q2: Do you agree that combined authorities should have the ability to hold 
meetings by video conference? 
 
Q3: Do you agree that the safeguards outlined in paragraphs 14 to 20 above are 
sufficient to preserve town hall transparency when these meetings are held by video 
conference?  
 
 

31



 

10 
 

About this consultation 

This consultation document and consultation process have been planned to adhere to the 
Consultation Principles issued by the Cabinet Office.  
 
Representative groups are asked to give a summary of the people and organisations they 
represent, and where relevant who else they have consulted in reaching their conclusions 
when they respond. 
 
Information provided in response to this consultation, including personal information, may 
be published or disclosed in accordance with the access to information regimes (these are 
primarily the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA), the Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA) 
and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004. 
 
If you want the information that you provide to be treated as confidential, please be aware 
that, under the FOIA, there is a statutory Code of Practice with which public authorities 
must comply and which deals, amongst other things, with obligations of confidence. In 
view of this it would be helpful if you could explain to us why you regard the information 
you have provided as confidential. If we receive a request for disclosure of the information 
we will take full account of your explanation, but we cannot give an assurance that 
confidentiality can be maintained in all circumstances. An automatic confidentiality 
disclaimer generated by your IT system will not, of itself, be regarded as binding on the 
Department. 
 
The Department for Communities and Local Government will process your personal data 
in accordance with DPA and in the majority of circumstances this will mean that your 
personal data will not be disclosed to third parties. 
Individual responses will not be acknowledged unless specifically requested. 
 
Your opinions are valuable to us. Thank you for taking the time to read this document and 
respond. 
 
Are you satisfied that this consultation has followed the Consultation Principles?  If not or 
you have any other observations about how we can improve the process please contact 
DCLG Consultation Co-ordinator. 
 
Department for Communities and Local Government 
2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 
or by email to: consultationcoordinator@communities.gsi.gov.uk 
 
 

32

mailto:consultationcoordinator@communities.gsi.gov.uk


ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE 5 DECEMBER 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE 

REPORT BY: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To put forward the current Ethics and Engagement Committee work programme 

for consideration by members. 
 

2. Work Programme Summary 
 

2.1 The work programme is attached as Appendix A, and was agreed at the last 
meeting of the Committee. 
 

2.2 Members are encouraged to put forward any proposals for relevant matters of 
concern or interest to them or the residents of their ward which the Ethics and 
Engagement Committee may be able to consider. 
 

3. Changes Made to the Work Programme 
 

3.1 
 

At the meeting of 23 March 2016, the work programme for 2016/17 was agreed. 
There is flexibility within the work programme to react to changing priorities as 
necessary. 
 

3.2 Earlier this year, officers met with the Chair and the Leader to discuss whether 
there were any aspects of the Committee’s terms of reference which could form 
the focus of further work in the future. In particular, it was agreed that officers 
would seek to bring reports regarding the following topics: 
 

 The manner in which the Council engages with the public, moving beyond 
the Committee’s previous focus on promoting local democracy to young 
people. 

 The link between the Council’s approach to member development and its 
organisational development strategy. 

 The support provided to elected members and whether it remains fit-for-
purpose. 

 
3.3 In addition, in consultation with the Chair the work programme has been amended 

to delay a report on Member Development and the Organisation Development 
Strategy from the meeting of 7 December 2016 to the next scheduled meeting on 
21 March 2017. This delay will allow the report to align with the evolution of the 
Organisation Development Strategy so the issue can be given proper 
consideration. 
 
 
 

33

Item No. 7



4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
Any additions to the work programme should be made in accordance with the 
scope of the Committee as established within its terms of reference. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That the Committee consider the work programme and propose any suitable 
changes if necessary. 
 

5.2 
 

That the Committee consider items scheduled for the next meeting and any 
necessary arrangements relating to them. 

 

34



APPENDIX A 
 

Ethics and Engagement Committee Work Programme 2016/17 
 

20 June 2016 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Member Induction Review Following consideration of the plans for the induction of 
any newly-elected councillors in May 2016, this will 
provide an opportunity for members to consider the 
outcome of the induction provided to new members. 
 

 To consider the delivery of member 
inductions and to offer any 
recommendations for future 
improvement. 

Local Democracy Week 
Update 

To update members on the plans for Local Democracy 
Week 2016. 
 

 To consider the arrangements made 
and recommend any suitable changes. 

Electoral Registration 
Update 

Individual electoral registration (IER) has been 
introduced across the country, shifting the process for 
registering electors from a household to an individual 
basis. Following a report to the previous meeting, an 
update was requested to provide information relating to 
attempts to encourage the registration of those who had 
not been transitioned from the previous register. 
 

 To consider the ongoing impact of 
Individual Electoral Registration on the 
number of registered electors in 
Lincoln. 

 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme. 
 To consider the arrangements for the 

next meeting. 

 
 
12 September 2016 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases To examine national developments of relevance to the  To note the issues raised and consider 

35



Review 
 

Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

a suitable response if required. 

Member Development 
Update 

Member development has become increasingly 
important in recent years as the Council seeks to ensure 
elected members have the skills and knowledge to 
perform their roles as effectively as possible.  
 

 To consider the current provision of 
member development and offer 
guidance on its future operation. 

Engaging with Lincoln’s 
Communities 

The Committee has a broader remit to improve the level 
of public engagement with the Council. This wider 
engagement will be examined in a broad manner within 
the report in order to allow members to highlight any 
areas which might benefit from particular attention. 
 

 To determine whether any aspect of 
the Council’s current engagement with 
the public should be considered in any 
further detail. 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme. 
 To consider the arrangements for the 

next meeting. 

 
 
5 December 2016 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Guidance for Councillors 
on Outside Bodies 

The Council appoints a large number of councillors to 
represent it on outside bodies, as well as members of 
the public. In order to ensure those members are able to 
fulfil their roles appropriately it is proposed that guidance 
will be created and circulated to the relevant members. 
 

 To consider and approve the proposed 
guidance for circulation. 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme for 
2015/16. 

 To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 

36



 
 
6 March 2017 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Member Development and 
the Organisation 
Development Strategy  

The Council currently operates its member development 
programme and its organisation framework for the 
training of officers separately. The report will therefore 
consider whether there are any opportunities for one 
programme to feed into the delivery and improvement of 
the other. 
 

 To consider any opportunities to merge 
member development and the 
Organisation Development Strategy. 

Support to Elected 
Members 

To explore the support offered to elected members by 
the Council and assess whether it remains fit-for-
purpose or can be improved. 
 

 To consider the needs of elected 
members and recommend any 
appropriate changes to the support 
currently offered 
 

Member Development 
Update 
 

Member development has become increasingly 
important in recent years as the Council seeks to ensure 
elected members have the skills and knowledge to 
perform their roles as effectively as possible.  
 

 To consider the current provision of 
member development and offer 
guidance on its future operation. 

Work Programme 2016/17 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme for 
2016/17. 

 To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 

 

37



T
his page is intentionally blank.


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 12 September 2016
	3 Code of Conduct: Cases Review
	4 Engagement with Lincoln's Communities
	5 Guidance for Councillors on Outside Bodies
	Guidance for Councillors on Outside Bodies - Appendix A

	6 Connecting Town Halls Consultation
	Connecting Town Halls Consultation - Appendix A

	7 Work Programme Update
	Work Programme Update - Appendix A


